CARDIFF COUNCIL CYNGOR CAERDYDD

MINUTES



CABINET MEETING: 21 JANUARY 2021

Cabinet Members Present:	Councillor Huw Thomas (Leader) Councillor Peter Bradbury Councillor Susan Elsmore Councillor Russell Goodway Councillor Graham Hinchey Councillor Sarah Merry Councillor Sarah Merry Councillor Michael Michael Councillor Lynda Thorne Councillor Chris Weaver Councillor Caro Wild
Observers:	Councillor Keith Parry Councillor Adrian Robson Councillor Rhys Taylor
Officers:	Paul Orders, Chief Executive Chris Lee, Section 151 Officer Davina Fiore, Monitoring Officer Joanne Watkins, Cabinet Office

17 MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 17 DECEMBER 2020

RESOLVED: that the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 17 December 2020 be approved

18 CHILD FRIENDLY CITY PROGRAMME

The Cabinet received a report outlining progress made in working towards global recognition for Cardiff as a Unicef Child Friendly city following a monitoring visit and subsequent report from Unicef UK in 2020. The Unicef monitoring report highlighted that there was clear evidence that the Council had made significant progress in establishing, prioritising and implementing a child rights-based approach in the Council's culture and commitments. The Cabinet report outlined a number of key recommendations that would need to be addressed ahead of the evaluation for full recognition in Autumn 2021.

RESOLVED: that Cardiff Council will:

- 1. Continue to sponsor a Council wide commitment to action to embed a child rights approach across all Council services.
- 2. Commit to the meaningful involvement of children and young people in COVID-19 city-wide recovery planning.
- 3. Work towards embedding the Child Rights Impact Assessment into the Policy framework.
- 4. Receive an Annual Child's Rights Report at Council, to capture progress and areas for improvement annually alongside the Council's Wellbeing report.
- 5. Develop a sustainable approach to rights based training including mandating child rights training for senior managers.
- 6. Maintain a meaningful approach to the participation of children and young people in all policy, strategy and decision making where changes will impact upon their lives.
- 7. Support the evaluation of progress towards the Child Friendly Vision for Cardiff as we embark upon the recognition phase with Unicef in 2021.

19 ARRANGEMENTS FOR MAKING CARE HOME PLACEMENTS FOR OLDER PEOPLE

The Cabinet considered a report seeking agreement for the implementation of a Dynamic Approved Provider List (DAPL) for residential and nursing home placements for Older People and Older People with Dementia from 1st April 2021. The report also provided an update on the regional service specification for care home service and outlined that some minor changes to the Charging Policy were necessary to align with the narrative around third party arrangements set out in the new regional contract and service specification and the Local Authority's responsibilities set out in the Social Services &Well-being (Wales) Act 2014.

RESOLVED: that

- 1. the procurement of a new Dynamic Approved Provider List (DAPL) to source residential and nursing home placements for Older People and Older People with Dementia be agreed with the intended implementation with effect from 1 April 2021.
- 2. Authority be delegated to the Corporate Director People and Communities, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Social Care, Health & Well-being, the Section 151 Officer and the Director of Governance and Legal Services to deal with all aspects of and make all future procurement decisions relating to the new DAPL arrangements and any necessary details of the model of the new DAPL.
- 3. the progress in relation to the development of a new regional service specification and contract for care home placements for older people, and the

intention to implement the new contracts and specification with effect from 1 April 2021 be noted

4. minor amendments to the Charging Policy, approved by Cabinet in January 2020, (which amendments are shown as tracked changes in appendix 4 to this report) be agreed in order that it explicitly sets out the Local Authority's role in relation to the facilitation of Third Party Agreements in line with its responsibilities set out in the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 and as specified in the new contract for Older People and Older People with Dementia.

20 BUS EMERGENCY SCHEME (BES) - REQUEST TO ALL COUNCILS TO SIGN UP TO BES 2 SCHEME

A report outlining details of the Bus Emergency Scheme (BES) was received, It was reported that the initial BES had been introduced by Welsh Government to provide support to Bus operators during the ongoing COVID19 pandemic. It was proposed that BES 2 would continue to address the loss of farebox revenue and the additional costs associated with responding to the pandemic. Under BES 2 the WG funding would sit alongside local authority funding provided through the Concessionary Travel Scheme and via Revenue Support Grant and the Bus Services Support Grant to make up the shortfall, with Welsh Government a co-signatory to the agreement.

RESOLVED: that

- 1. the principles of the BES 2 agreement (Appendix 2) to secure (conditional) financial support for the bus sector and to establish a relationship with their regional lead authority and signatory, that ensures that the ongoing emergency funding meets the authority's priorities and is delivered on its behalf be noted
- 2. authority be delegated to the Director of Planning, Transport and Environment, subject to consultation with the Cabinet Member Strategic Planning and Transport, Cabinet Member Finance, Modernisation & Performance, s.151 Officer and Director Governance and Legal Services to determine and approve the final terms of the BES 2 Agreement and the Umbrella Partnership Agreement (as both are currently in draft form), give the Lead Local Authority (currently proposed to be Monmouthshire County Council) approval to sign the BES 2 agreement on Cardiff Council's behalf and to deal with all ancillary matters relating thereto including any back to back agreement that may be required with the Lead Local Authority.
- 3. It be noted that there will be further reports on bus reform proposals relating to the future management of bus services in the Region and Wales.